1953

Perry E. Burnham et al v. Albert E. Reid et al : Brief for Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On the 22nd day of November, 1946, the Cove Ranch Land & Livestock Company and others made a contract to sell to Clifton B. Layton a ranch in Blaine County, Idaho, known as the Cove Ranch, for the total consideration of \$70,000.00. Layton paid \$3,000.00 and agreed to pay \$17,000.00

additional on or before the 1st day of January, 1947, and the balance of \$50,000.00, together with interest, on or before the 21st day of January, 1948. On the same day, he and his wife, Lois, executed and delivered to A. Edsen Christensen and Ray Rosebraugh, a note for \$10,000.00 and a mortgage covering the land which he had contracted to buy, to secure payment of the note.

Perry E. Burnham, one of the appellants herein, advanced to Layton \$17,000.00 with which to complete the first installment payment. The contract has endorsed on it the receipt of \$10,000.00 on December 7, 1946.

The balance of the purchase price of this property became due on the 21st day of January, 1948, and at that time, Perry E. Burnham and L. Earl Burnham paid to the Cove Ranch the sum of \$46,104.35 and took title to the ranch. \$8,000.00 of the purchase price was paid through the trading of some of the land covered by the original contract for other land, and \$8,000.00 in money, all of which went to the Cove Ranch. This payment covered interest and reduced the indebtedness to the \$46,104.35. Upon payment of the \$20,000.00, Layton went into possession of the property. Upon the taking of the deed by Burnhams in January, 1948, they took possession and retained possession in person or by tenants at all times until the making of a contract between the Burnhams and the defendants (Tr. 8). The mortgage to Christensen and Rosebraugh was not paid, and they brought suit upon the note for the foreclosure of the mortgage. Later they endorsed and transferred the note and mortgage to Walter Stewart, who filed an Amended and Supplemental Complaint, and made the

Burnhams parties defendant. The plaintiff, in the Supplemental Complaint, pleaded that (Tr. 25):

“ . . . their (the mortgagors’) interest in the property was that of a purchaser, under said written agreement between the said Cove Ranch Land and Livestock Co., and said defendants . . . ”

While the suit was pending and on the 15th day of April, 1948, Perry E. Burnham and L. Earl Burnham gave notice to Clifton B. Layton and to Jack Layton and his wife, the assignees of the contract of purchase, of the cancellation of the agreement (Tr. 30).

Clifton B. Layton alleged in his Answer to the Stewart Complaint that (Tr. 36):

“This defendant, being unable to make payment of the purchase price of said property so advanced by the said Perry E. Burnham and L. Earl Burnham, was compelled to suffer the cancellation of the said agreement.”

and Jack Layton admitted that: (Tr. 39)

“ . . . Perry E. Burnham and L. Earl Burnham have acquired by purchase the real estate in the Mortgage, Exhibit B, and that they are now the owners in fee of said property.”

At the time of the trial of the case, there was no controversy between the plaintiffs and the Laytons. The court found: (Tr. 47)

“That the said Burnhams did not give this plaintiff (Stewart) or the said Christensen and Rosébraugh or any of them an opportunity to pay the balance unpaid on said contract of November 22, 1946, and did not

give any of such persons advance notice of their intention to forfeit said contract and did not at any time tender to Christensen and Rosebraugh or the plaintiff or any of them a deed to the property described in said agreement of November 22, 1946, or any part or portion thereof."

The Court concluded that the plaintiff was entitled to have his mortgage foreclosed and the property sold at sheriff's sale (Tr. 49). The court corrected the Findings by reciting that Grover Giles appeared only for the defendants, Clifton B. Layton and Lois Layton (Tr. 50) and by a letter (Tr. 51), recited as a finding, the following:

"Mr. Giles also, on behalf of his clients Clifton Layton and wife, appears to be under the impression that the Court should at this time make some provision in the decree of foreclosure requiring the defendants Burnhams, in the event of redemption by Clifton B. Layton, to account to his clients for rents and profits while the Burnhams have been in possession of the mortgaged premises. No issue in this respect appears to have been made by the pleadings, and it is not my understanding that defendant Clifton B. Layton, at the time of the trial, claimed any right to possession in or to the mortgage premises as against either the defendants Jack B. Layton and wife or the Burnhams."

A Decree of Foreclosure was entered (Tr. 53), which Decree directed the sale of all of the property notwithstanding the mortgage purported to cover only the interest of the Laytons, which, as to plaintiff Stewart having not been terminated, was subject to foreclosure. This Decree was followed by an Order of Sale (Tr. 57), and the sale by the sheriff of all of the property (Tr. 59), as if the mortgage covered the

real estate, and not as found by the court, only the right of the successors-in-interest of Layton to purchase it.

Thereafter, the court made an Order on the petition of Clifton B. Layton and Jack Layton fixing the amount payable for the redemption of the property from the sale made to the Burnhams. The court disclaimed any intention of passing upon the question as to who had redemption rights.

In this state of the record of the contracts and foreclosure proceedings, the plaintiffs and appellants entered into a contract of sale of their interest to the respondents herein, Albert E. Reid and Leah Reid, his wife (Exhibit A to the Complaint-Tr. 8). This contract is the immediate occasion for this litigation.

Two tracts of land described in the Contract (Tr. 9) were not included in the description of the property in the original contract of sale and were not included in the mortgage foreclosed or in the Sheriff's sale—one tract, because it is the property received in exchange for some land covered by the original contract, and the other tract was land omitted from the described property in the original contract. We call this to the attention of the court at this time because upon the second cause of action involving wheat grown upon this land, the court, notwithstanding stipulations, held it had no jurisdiction to enter judgment. At the time of the making of the Contract (Exhibit A-Tr. 8), between the parties hereto on the 6th day of September, 1950, all of the land covered by the contract, the certificate of redemption, and the quit-claim deeds, was in the possession of a tenant under a crop share contract with

the Burnhams. The hay was in the stack and a part of the grain was harvested, and a part was being harvested.

It was thought in the beginning, that all of the facts could be stipulated as was contemplated by the Contract of September 6th. Accordingly, the court will find attached to the original Complaint, exhibits showing the status of the property and the relations between the plaintiffs and the predecessors in interest of the defendants from the original transactions out of which the controversy has arisen. No evidence was offered or received. The judgment is predicated upon the record made as indicated. The difficulty arises out of the interpretation of the record. We must, however, at this point, invite the court's attention to a stipulation found in the record (Tr. 68) providing for the filing of an amendment and supplement to the Complaint which was attached to the stipulation and filed on order of the court (October 17, 1951—Tr. 67), and the Answer to the amendment filed by the defendants (Tr. 71). This stipulation, amendment and answer pertain to wheat grown upon the land described in the amendment which admittedly did not belong to the defendants and which pertains solely to a personal claim against the defendants, and was purely a transitory action. The court refused to consider it upon the ground that the court had no jurisdiction over the subject matter.

Upon the record made, which also included disclaimers by Clifton B. Layton and Jack B. Layton of any interest in the crops grown upon the land described in the amended pleading, the court made findings (Tr. 146) to which we now invite attention:

1. That the District Court for Blaine County issued an order for the sale of the Cove Ranch and that the plaintiffs herein purchased the property.

2. That plaintiffs and defendants entered into a contract, Exhibit "A" attached to the Complaint, from which a quotation is made.

3. That the defendants paid to plaintiffs \$81,085.74 and plaintiffs issued a certificate of redemption covering the land and water rights.

4. That the tenant, Nek Stelma, was in possession of the property as a tenant, and that wheat grown upon the land was sold and pursuant to the contract, \$3,129.08 was paid to defendants and two-thirds of the landlord's share of the proceeds of the sale, amounting to \$6,258.05 was placed in escrow with Zion's Savings Bank to be paid out upon judgment of the court in a suit for a declaratory judgment. The court concluded that the plaintiffs were entitled to \$2,340.51, and the defendants \$3,917.54, and further:

"That the court cannot terminate the controversy of the matter referred to in the supplemental to the Complaint . . ."

and the court entered judgment accordingly.

POINTS UPON WHICH THE APPELLANTS EXPECT TO RELY

I. The court erroneously assumed the relationship of mortgagor and mortgagee existed between Clifton B. Layton and/or

Jack B. Layton and the plaintiffs herein as to the Cove Ranch and that the mortgage foreclosure in the District Court for Blaine County, Idaho, was a foreclosure of the mortgage.

II. The court wholly disregarded the fact as stipulated that the foreclosure was the foreclosure of a right on the part of Clifton B. Layton to complete the purchase of the Cove Ranch under contract (Exhibit C-Tr. 15) and that such right had been cut off as to Clifton B. Layton and Jack B. Layton by notice, pleadings, findings and judgment in Stewart vs. Layton et al and existed only as to the right of Stewart, the successor-in-interest of the mortgagees, in the mortgage from Layton to Christensen et al, to complete the purchase of the ranch under said contract.

III. The court erroneously assumed and found that the District Court for Blaine County, Idaho, in the Stewart case, had held that the notice of cancellation of the contract between the Cove Ranch and Layton was ineffective for all purposes; notwithstanding the cancellation was pleaded by Clifton B. Layton and Jack B. Layton.

IV. The court disregarded the admitted fact that the sole title and ownership of the Cove Ranch was in the plaintiffs at all times before and after the execution sale and that they alone had the exclusive right to lease the property and to collect and hold as against the whole world all of the rents and profits at all times up to the making of the contract between the plaintiffs and the defendants.

V. The court arbitrarily, without application or justification, revived the cancelled contract between the Cove Ranch

and Layton and gave the Laytons a right of redemption which was not given by the District Court for Idaho and the court has, in disregard of the contract between plaintiffs and defendants, added a right which did not exist.

VI. The court misinterpreted Exhibit A to the complaint, (Contract between plaintiffs and defendants) by making it include as property sold by plaintiffs to the defendants, personal property, to-wit: the crops which were harvested and ready for harvest at the time of the contract and which were not included in the sale, except as to that portion specifically covered by the contract.

VII. The court erroneously refused to adjudicate the ownership of the wheat grown upon the land described in the amendment to the Complaint on the ground of lack of jurisdiction notwithstanding the wheat had no relationship to the land, having been severed, and the parties to the controversy were all, by stipulation and order of the court, made parties to this proceeding. The court erred in holding something more than personal jurisdiction was required.

ARGUMENT

POINTS I, II, III and IV

POINT I

THE COURT ERRONEOUSLY ASSUMED THE RELATIONSHIP OF MORTGAGOR AND MORTGAGEE EXISTED BETWEEN CLIFTON B. LAYTON AND/OR JACK B. LAYTON AND THE PLAINTIFFS HEREIN AS

TO THE COVE RANCH AND THAT THE MORTGAGE FORECLOSURE IN THE DISTRICT COURT FOR BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO, WAS A FORECLOSURE OF THE MORTGAGE.

POINT II

THE COURT WHOLLY DISREGARDED THE FACTS AS STIPULATED THAT THE FORECLOSURE WAS THE FORECLOSURE OF A RIGHT ON THE PART OF CLIFTON B. LAYTON TO COMPLETE THE PURCHASE OF THE COVE RANCH UNDER CONTRACT (EXHIBIT C-TR. 15) AND THAT SUCH RIGHT HAD BEEN CUT OFF AS TO CLIFTON B. LAYTON AND JACK B. LAYTON BY NOTICE, PLEADINGS, FINDINGS AND JUDGMENT IN STEWART VS. LAYTON ET AL AND EXISTED ONLY AS TO THE RIGHT OF STEWART, THE SUCCESSOR-IN-INTEREST OF THE MORTGAGEES, IN THE MORTGAGE FROM LAYTON TO CHRISTENSEN ET AL TO COMPLETE THE PURCHASE OF THE RANCH UNDER SAID CONTRACT.

POINT III

THE COURT ERRONEOUSLY ASSUMED AND FOUND THAT THE DISTRICT COURT FOR BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO, IN THE STEWART CASE, HAD HELD THAT THE NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OF THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COVE RANCH AND LAYTON

WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR ALL PURPOSES; NOTWITHSTANDING THE CANCELLATION WAS PLEADED BY CLIFTON B. LAYTON AND JACK B. LAYTON.

POINT IV

THE COURT DISREGARDED THE ADMITTED FACT THAT THE SOLE TITLE AND OWNERSHIP OF THE COVE RANCH WAS IN THE PLAINTIFFS AT ALL TIMES BEFORE AND AFTER THE EXECUTION SALE AND THAT THEY ALONE HAD THE EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO LEASE THE PROPERTY AND TO COLLECT AND HOLD AS AGAINST THE WHOLE WORLD ALL OF THE RENTS AND PROFITS AT ALL TIMES UP TO THE MAKING OF THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE PLAINTIFFS AND THE DEFENDANTS.

The court will readily observe that Clifton B. Layton had a contract for the purchase of the Cove Ranch for the total consideration of \$70,000.00, \$3,000.00 of which he paid. \$17,000.00 on the first installment of \$20,000.00 was paid by Perry E. Burnham, \$50,000.00 was payable in January of 1948. Layton had no money with which to make the payment. The contract read (Tr. 19):

“That in the event the Fourth Party (Layton) is able to complete the said \$50,000.00 payment due on or before the 21st day of January, 1948, the said First, Second and Third Parties will make the transfers of title as herein provided above for the entire ranch properties specified, to Clifton B. Layton or his appointee.”

Layton was not able to make the payments, and the plaintiffs paid to the Cove Ranch, sellers, the balance of \$46,104.35—the difference between the \$50,000 payment, and interest, and the amount paid, covered by the sale of some of the land. The Burnhams took legal title to the property and took possession. After that date, Layton was never in possession of the property, and he never acquired title thereto. Notwithstanding this, Layton gave to Christensen and Rosebraugh a mortgage purporting to cover the ranch, to secure payment of a \$10,000.00 note. Christensen brought suit to foreclose the mortgage given to secure the \$10,000.00 note, and for nothing else. It was later assigned to Stewart. This suit was for the foreclosure of the mortgage, and all of the property constituting the Cove Ranch was described in the mortgage attached to the Complaint and in the Decree of the court. It was in that suit, and no other, that the foreclosure proceedings went forward. In the Complaint, Stewart alleged (Tr. 25):

“That at the time of the execution of said second mortgage, said defendants’ interest in said property was that of a purchaser thereof, evidenced by a written agreement, executed on the 22nd day of November, 1946, between the Cove Ranch Land and Livestock Co., and others, and the said defendants (Laytons)
... ”

After acquiring the property, Burnhams, on April 15, 1948, served notice of the cancellation of the Layton purchase contract (Tr. 30). The sufficiency of the notice was never questioned by the Laytons. On the contrary, Clifton B. Layton pleaded (Tr. 36):

“This defendant, being unable to make payment of

the purchase price of said property so advanced by the said Perry E. Burnham and L. Earl Burnham, was compelled to suffer the cancellation of the said agreement."

The case was tried on that pleading, Grover Giles appearing as attorney for Layton. No amendment was asked for or made. Jack B. Layton pleaded as follows (Tr. 39):

"Admit that Perry E. Burnham and L. Earl Burnham have acquired by purchase the real estate described in the Mortgage, Exhibit B, and that they are now the owners in fee of said property."

The Burnhams pleaded the same thing. The court, by supplemental findings in the form of a letter (Tr. 51) found:

"The pleadings and the evidence shows that Clifton B. Layton assigned all his interest in the contract of November 22nd, 1946, to Jack B. Layton, and the defendant Jack B. Layton, by his answer, expressly admitted 'that Perry E. Burnham and L. Earl Burnham have acquired by purchase the real estate described in the mortgage, exhibit B . . . ' "

The court further found (Finding No. 4—Tr. 45):

"That at the time of the execution of said mortgage, the interest of the said Clifton Layton and Lois Layton in said property was that of a purchaser thereof, evidenced by a written agreement executed and delivered on the 22nd day of November, 1946 . . . "

and further (Finding No. 8—Tr. 47):

"That sometime in April, 1948, the said Burnhams served a written notice of forfeiture upon the said A. Edsel Christensen and Ray Rosenbraugh and others, as shown by the exhibit introduced in evidence herein. That the said Burnhams did not give this plaintiff

(Stewart) or the said Christensen and Rosebraugh or any of them an opportunity to pay the balance unpaid on said contract of November 22, 1946, and did not give any of such persons advance notice of their intention to forfeit said contract and did not at any time tender to Christensen and Rosebraugh or the plaintiff or any of them a deed to the property described in said agreement of November 22, 1946, or any part or portion thereof."

We have quoted from all these documents for the purpose of meeting the contention of counsel and apparently the conclusion of the court that by these findings, the notice as to the Laytons was disregarded as insufficient. That is not the fact as shown by the pleadings, and it was not the intention of the court as disclosed by the clearest kind of language which limited the annulment of the notice to Christensen and Rosebraugh and the plaintiff Stewart in that case. The Laytons had a perfect right to accept, as the lesser of two evils, the cancellation of the contract of the sale of the property during the course of the foreclosure proceedings. The case was tried on that theory and while Layton will claim he was not properly represented, the court will find that he was represented by independent counsel as found by the court, and yet he elected to accept the cancellation of the contract and thereby end his connection with it.

At no time after the Burnhams paid the \$46,104.35 were the Laytons in possession of the property, and at no time were they entitled to the possession of it.

It is difficult to understand the theory of the District Court for Blaine County in ordering the sale of the property.

The Decree does not, in any respect, follow the Complaint, the evidence or the findings, for the court found Layton had only the right to purchase the land under the contract with the Cove Ranch, owners, when he gave the mortgage, and so the pleader in the foreclosure suit pleaded that right. The court found that right and nothing more. Furthermore, the pleadings disclosed without denial, that the Burnhams owned the ranch. Notwithstanding these admissions, the court made a Decree ordering the sale of the land itself, not of the right being foreclosed, to-wit: *the right to purchase the land.*

The Burnhams had a perfect right to stand upon their contract and if redemption had been made, not of the sale of the property itself, but of the right to purchase the property by Stewart, as the record stood, the Burnhams may have been compelled to specifically perform by conveying the land to Stewart and accepting the purchase price as determined by the court, if a controversy existed. Stewart did not elect to complete the purchase under the contract. These relations do not disclose any right of redemption or any other right except insofar as Stewart was concerned, the right to perform, and so far as Laytons were concerned, no rights at all.

An appeal was not taken from the judgment of the district court and when the Reids appeared on the scene with an offer to perform the contract by paying Burnhams the full amount of their money, with interest, costs and expenses, they accepted. In the meantime, however, and in obedience to the decree of the court, the Sheriff for Blaine County went through the formality of the sale of the ranch owned by Burnhams to the Burnhams; and in order to clear the record, Burnhams

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