1953

# Perry E. Burnham et al v. Albert E. Reid et al : Brief for Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### Point 1

**FULL PAYMENT WAS MADE TO APPELLANTS FROM OTHER SOURCES AND THEREFORE APPELLANTS ARE NOT ENTITLED TO ANY OF THE ESCROWED FUNDS.**

Subsequent to the Sheriff's Sale on June 2, 1950, the District Court for Blaine County, Idaho through D. H. Sutphen, Judge, pursuant to the motion of Clifton B. Layton, Jack B. Layton and Grace Layton made an Order fixing the amount required for the redemption of the property from the sale to the Burnhams as follows:

Purchase price at Sheriff's Sale .....	\$71,451.06
Interest at 6% from June 2, 1950 .....	563.77
Taxes paid August 9, 1948 .....	3,061.89
Interest at 6% from August 9, 1948.....	357.39

Taxes paid June 6, 1950 .....	2,514.75
Add interest at 6% from June 2, 1950.....	19.83
Water assessments paid April 20, 1950 .....	1,634.22
Add interest at 6% from April 20, 1950.....	24.43
Water assessments paid April 1, 1950.....	293.22
Interest at 6% from April 1, 1950 .....	5.33
Sawtooth grazing stock assessment paid June 6, 1950 .....	50.00
Interest at 6% from June 6, 1950.....	.36
Water assessment paid May 15, 1948.....	500.00
Interest at 6% from May 15, 1948 .....	66.65
<b>TOTAL .....</b>	<b>\$80,542.90</b>

This was the amount set to redeem as of September 9, 1950. (Tr. 6) The respondents Albert E. Reid and Leah Reid on September 11, 1950 paid to the appellants the sum of \$81,085.74 which was the amount determined plus 6% interest from September 9, 1950 to September 11, 1950.

Thus the appellants were made completely whole for every dollar which they had advanced including monies paid for taxes and water assessments, including the water assessments used in the raising of the crops for the year 1950.

The appellants in connection with the purchase of the Cove Ranch had loaned to Clifton B. Layton the purchaser the sum of \$63,102.25 and the said Clifton B. Layton had purchased from or through one of the appellants, Perry E. Burnham, certain cattle for which the said Clifton B. Layton became obligated to pay the sum of \$5,656.00 (Tr. 138) This indebtedness had been com-

pletely discharged by the appellants taking the three promissory notes of Carl H. Randall, Edward Randall and Oriel Randall, each in the principal amount of \$25,000.00 to be secured by mortgages on certain real property, which said notes and the mortgages thereafter delivered were taken as a cash item in full payment of all obligations theretofore and then owing by the said Layton to the said appellants. (Tr. 138) Notwithstanding the cancellation of the indebtedness owing by the said Layton to the appellants, the appellants also received from said ranch properties various other sums and then took the \$81,085.74 from the respondents, which in fact belonged to the Laytons. (Tr. 139)

Obviously, therefore, the appellants are in no way entitled to any portion of the escrowed funds.

## Point 2.

UPON REDEMPTION FROM THE FORECLOSURE OF THE MORTGAGE, THE ORIGINAL RIGHTS OF THE LAYTONS WHICH HAD BEEN ASSIGNED TO RESPONDENTS ALBERT E. REID AND LEAH REID WERE RESTORED FREED OF THE LIEN FOR WHICH THE PROPERTY WAS SOLD AND AS THE INDEBTEDNESS TO THE APPELLANTS HAD BEEN COMPLETELY DISCHARGED, THE RESPONDENTS ARE ENTITLED TO ALL TITLE, RIGHT AND INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY INCLUDING THE RIGHT IN FULL TO THE LANDLORD'S SHARE OF THE CROPS.

In *Evans vs. City of American Falls*, 11 Pac. 2nd, page 363, citing Idaho C. S. Sec. 6933.



“The judgment debtor redemptioner may redeem the property from the purchaser within one year after the sale on paying the purchaser the amount of his purchase with 10 per cent thereon in addition, together with the amount of any assessment or taxes which the purchaser may have paid thereon after the purchase and interest on such amount; and if the purchaser be also a creditor having a prior lien to that of the redemptioner, other than the judgment under which such purchase was made, the amount of such lien with interest.”

In this case the appellant having acquired title prior to the expiration of the period of redemption by making redemption from the original sale, took the land free and clear from the lien of the original judgment, under which it had been sold. (See *Evans vs. Humphrey*, 51 Idaho-5 P 2nd 545)

The language in the *Evans* case on this point is: “The title so arising from the redemption was not a new title. It was merely the original title of the judgment debtor restored of the lien from which the property was sold.”

That exact question has been passed upon by the Court of Appeals of California in construing a statute identical with Idaho C. S. Sec. 6933 and from which it was adopted:

“In case of redemption by the judgment debtor or mortgagor, the effect of the sale is extinguished and the statute declares he is restored to his estate in the land, which then, for the first time, becomes subject to the lien of the unsatisfied portion of the judgment. The lien attaches then because the effect

of the sale has been extinguished and the mortgagor or judgment debtor is the owner of the estate as though no sale had been made.”

Applying the said statute and the above theory to the case before the Court.

The title arising from the redemption was not a new title, it was the original title of the judgment debtor restored freed of the lien for which the property was sold. The mortgagor or judgment debtor or his assignee or grantee is the owner of the estate as though no sale had been made.

The respondents Albert E. Reid and Leah Reid therefore step into the shoes of the mortgagor and must be recognized as purchasers under the contract of purchase and thus have the right to complete the contract of purchase which they do in paying the appellants in full all that is owing to them, and the respondents are then entitled to receive all title, right and interest in the property purchased under the contract including all the right or interest of the appellants in the landlord's share of the crop.

Judge Sutphen, the trial judge, recognized this fact and made an attempt to adjust all equities involved.

This is specifically shown by the Decree of Foreclosure entered by Judge Sutphen wherein he enters judgment on the \$10,000 note secured by the mortgage executed by Clifton B. Layton with interest, costs and attorneys' fees and makes the judgment a lien on the property described in said mortgage and goes on to say:



“Which said lien is subject only to a prior claim in favor of the defendant Perry E. Burnham in the sum of \$17,000.00 together with interest on \$10,000.00 thereof with interest computed at 5 per cent per annum from December 7, 1946 together with interest on \$7,000.00 thereof from January 15, 1947 at 5 per cent per annum and subject to a prior claim in favor of the defendants Perry E. Burnham, and L. Earl Burnham, jointly in the sum of \$46,104.35 with interest on said latter sum from February 18, 1948 at 5 per cent per annum.” (Tr. 54)

You will note that the \$10,000.00 note in favor of Christensen and Rosebraugh which was secured by the mortgage which was the subject of the foreclosure was dated January 23, 1947 and you will also note that the advancement of the sum of \$46,104.35 made by the Burnhams was not until February 18, 1948 more than a year later, and therefore Judge Sutphen was attempting to adjust all equities in his adjudication of the case.

### Point 3.

LAYTONS HAD THE RIGHT TO REDEMPTION AND HAD ASSIGNED SAID RIGHT TO RESPONDENTS, ALBERT E. REID AND LEAH REID, HIS WIFE.

There is no question that Judge Sutphen recognized that the Laytons had the right of redemption as well as the other defendants. I refer to his letter under date of December 2, 1949 (Tr. 51) wherein he states:

“As I understand the law, the respective parties will each have their statutory redemption rights which this Court cannot modify.”

May it also be called to the Court's attention that in the Certificate of Redemption which was delivered by the appellants herein to the respondents upon payment of the \$81,085.74, the appellants made the following statement:

"That said redemption was made by the said Albert E. Reid and Leah Reid, his wife, upon the following claim of right:

By virtue of assignments of all the rights of Clifton B. Layton, Jack B. Layton and Mrs. Jack B. Layton, his wife, by Quit Claim Deeds to Albert E. Reid and Leah Reid, his wife, now of record in the office of the County Recorder of Blaine County, State of Idaho."

#### Point 4.

#### THE PURPORTED NOTICE OF CANCELLATION WAS OF NO EFFECT

If the purported Notice of Cancellation of Agreement was effective as the appellants allege, and the rights of the Laytons cancelled out, why then did the Court recognize that the Laytons had the right of redemption and why did the appellants acknowledge in the Certificate of Redemption that the respondents herein were making redemption by virtue of the assignments from the Laytons.

In reading the Notice of Cancellation (Tr. 30) it can be soon determined that the Notice is not in the alternative as required by law and it can readily be understood why Judge Sutphen made the statement in his Findings:

“That the said Burnhams did not give the plaintiff in the foreclosure action or the said Christensen and Rosebraugh or any of them an opportunity to pay the balance unpaid on the said contract of November 22, 1945 and did not give any of such persons advance notice of their intention to forfeit said contract and did not at any time tender to Christensen and Rosebraugh or the plaintiff or any of them a deed to the property described in said agreement of November 22, 1946 or any part or portion thereof.” (Tr. 47)

If the Notice of Cancellation was not effective as to Christensen and Rosebraugh, then it was not effective as to the Laytons, as the purported Notice was addressed to all of them. (Tr. 30)

Permit us to call attention also to the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law entered in the Accounting Action in the District Court of the United States, for the District of Utah, which states:

“Thereafter, in May 1948 (which is the month following the purported Notice of Cancellation), the parties herein negotiated the sale of the Cove Ranch properties, including livestock and equipment situated thereon, to Carl H. Randall, Edward Randall and Oriel Randall, for a total purchase price of \$140,000.00. The said Randalls entered into a written contract for the purchase of said “Cove Ranch” and personal property, from the Defendants, Perry E. Burnham and L. Earl Burnham, for said amount. Said contract was entered into by Defendants as *trustees* for the Plaintiffs, (Laytons) and on their own behalf for the purpose of obtaining a repayment of all moneys due and owing Defendants from Plaintiffs (Laytons) in connection

with the loans and advances made by them.” (Tr. 138) \* \* \* “The Plaintiffs have at no time by any agreement with the Defendants, or otherwise, altered the fundamental security relationship which originally existed between the parties except that Plaintiffs authorized the Defendants to receive from the Randall Brothers \$75,000.00 in notes and mortgages as a cash item in payment of all obligations theretofore and then owing by Plaintiffs to Defendants, which agreement was fulfilled.”

### Point 5.

RESPONDENTS ALBERT E. REID AND LEAH REID, HIS WIFE, WERE RESTORED TO THE POSITION OF CLIFTON B. LAYTON AT THE TIME OF THE EXECUTION OF HIS NOTE AND MORTGAGE IN FAVOR OF ROSEBRAUGH AND CHRISTENSEN, WITH THE INDEBTEDNESS TO THE APPELLANTS PAID IN FULL AND THE SELLER UNDER THE CONTRACT PAID IN FULL AND THEREFORE RESPONDENTS ARE ENTITLED TO THE WHOLE OF SAID PROPERTY AND ALL BENEFITS THEREFROM.

The respondents Albert E. Reid and Leah Reid, his wife, being the assignees and grantees of Clifton B. Layton, Jack Layton, the assignee of Clifton B. Layton, and the wife of the said Jack Layton were restored to the position of Clifton B. Layton at the time of the execution of his note to Christensen and Rosebraugh and upon payment of the sum of \$81,085.74 on September 11, 1950 were entitled to all of the right, title, estate and interest of the original Sellers under the Agreement to sell the Cove Ranch and of course all of the

right, title, estate and interest of the appellants herein as assignees and grantees of the original sellers, which right included all rights to the landlord's share of the crops or the proceeds therefrom. It would certainly be an unjust enrichment of the appellants to not only pay them all that they received under the Agreement of Sale and re-imbursement for taxes, water assessments, including the water assessments for the water used on the 1950 crop and then also allow them the landlord's share of the proceeds of the sale of the crops. Why should the respondents be charged, for instance, for the water assessments for the water used on the 1950 crops if they are not to receive the benefits from the payment of the water assessments.

#### Point 6.

THE ACTION AS FILED WAS TO OBTAIN A DECLARATORY JUDGMENT AS TO THE OWNERSHIP OF THE ESCROWED FUNDS WITH ZION'S SAVINGS BANK AND TRUST COMPANY AND OTHER MATTERS EXTRINSIC TO THE ISSUES SHOULD NOT BE INTRODUCED.

Prior to making redemption, to-wit: On September 6, 1950 the appellants and the respondents entered into a contract in writing in which among other things, it was agreed:

(1) "That of the landlord's share of the crop upon the land being redeemed and which has been raised and will be harvested as, of and during the crop year of 1950 and being one-third of such landlord's share shall be paid over to first party, the de-

fendants herein, (Reids, the respondents) free and clear of all claims by second parties; *the remaining two thirds of such landlord's share* of the 1950 crop shall be sold as the same is harvested and the proceeds placed in escrow with the Zion's Savings Bank & Trust Company of Salt Lake City, Utah, thereto *be held in escrow until declaratory judgment or other agreeable determination* can be had as to the rights of first and second parties thereto."

The original proceedings was brought for the purpose of obtaining this declaratory judgment, however the appellants have tried through the supplemental to the complaint to bring in extrinsic matters which have no bearing whatsoever on the issue.

#### Point 7.

IF THE CASE IS CONSIDERED ONLY AS THE ORDINARY FORECLOSURE OF MORTGAGE, THE APPELLANTS WOULD BE ENTITLED ONLY TO THE LANDLORD'S SHARE OF THE CROP FOR THE PERIOD OF TIME WHILE THEY HELD THE CERTIFICATE OF SALE, THAT IS FROM JUNE 9, 1950 TO SEPTEMBER 11, 1950, THE DATE THAT THE RESPONDENTS MADE PAYMENT AND MADE REDEMPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

If we completely ignore the theories as set forth in the above and foregoing arguments and look at the case as the ordinary foreclosure of a mortgage and the rights that exist between the purchaser under the foreclosure sale and the redemptioner, permit me to refer you to the following:



Ferguson vs. Sullivan, 74 P2nd 183. (An Idaho case)

“A purchaser of land at execution sale on mortgage foreclosure must pro-rate crop or cash rental for entire year in which sale was made and certificate issued with judgment debtor-mortgagor on basis of portion of year preceding and following date of sale.”

The facts in the Ferguson vs. Sullivan case are as follows:

“The appellant was the owner of a tract of farm land in Latah County, Idaho and executed a mortgage thereon in favor of respondent. Default was made in payment of the mortgage debt and foreclosure was had, and on execution sale which occurred May 26, 1936, respondent bid in the property. At the time of the sale, the land was in the possession of and being cultivated by one Virgil Hurlbert, who was a lessee of the property under which is known as a crop lease whereby he had contracted to deliver to the landlord (appellant) ‘one third of the crop delivered in the warehouse at Genessee, Idaho as annual rental of the place.’ When the crop matured it was harvested by Hurlbert and stored in the warehouse in accordance with the terms of the lease, and upon demand of the purchaser under the foreclosure, Hurlbert attorned to the defendant as landlord and delivered to him the entire one third of the crop. After the expiration of the cropping and leasehold year, plaintiff made demand on defendant for the proportionate share of the crop rent, which was the time elapsed from the first of the leasehold year to the date of the sale bears to the entire year, on the theory that all earned rental to the date of the execution sale belonging to the plaintiff and that defendant was entitled to collect only rentals accruing after that

date. Defendant refused the demand and this action was commenced for the collection of a proportionate share of the rents which it is claimed is 240/365 of 47,813 pounds of wheat.

The question: Is the purchaser at execution sale on foreclosure entitled to receive and retain all of the grain or crop rental from the entire year in which the sale is made and the certificate is issued, or must he prorate with the judgment debtor for the portion of the year which has expired prior to the time of sale?

Section 8-406 Idaho Code Annotated.

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